The following document was not prepared by the Office of the State Auditor, but was
prepared by and submitted to the Office of the State Auditor by a private CPA firm. The
document was placed on this web page as it was submitted. The Office of the State
Auditor assumes no responsibility for its content or for any errors located in the
document. Any questions of accuracy or authenticity concerning this document should
be submitted to the CPA firm that prepared the document. The name and address of the
CPA firm appears in the document.






RANKIN COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI
Audited Financial Statements and Special Reports
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015



RANKIN COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

- PRI

Ty

O - . P - - SR 3 LI — R .

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs....... S rtseree e A eat A R nh 0

17 -

19 -

TABLE OF CONTENTS
TNDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT.........nernricrnrrrrens bR r st araae st et b e penn e e e rane e
MANAGEMEN'I"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS......coccenimns e rrerresssamsssssssssssssssssans
FINANCIAL STATEMENT‘S . :
Statement of Net Position.............. prssasnes et ersenaenas JE— ;
Statement of Activities..........onrennrnnsisimrnscanns 18
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds ............... .
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the
Statement of Net Position........ccooccvecreivneenne crresmsene e et . 20
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund '
Balances - Governmental Funds............oo i i 21
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expendltures and Changes in . '
Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities.............. peeneans 22
. Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds..............c.o... 23
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - ‘
Proprietary Funds.......cc.oeevimereeecenesnelencnnae ereranrrt et st snenacnrasamaeyas e nar harbesnst et 24
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds............ccccenrumrecsmsusnsssisnionna. w25
Statement of Fiduciary Assets & Liabilities.............verisieisimsnmnens porasrsereesasas arsens 26
Notes to the Financial StAteMEnts......cvverrerrsssieressmmessancanss rerrenesenensnensies 27
"REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budget and Actual
" (Non-GAAP Basis) General Fund rreerme et aieeases 51
. Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budget and Acmal .
(Non-GAAP Basis) County Unit Road _Malmenance Fund......... bevvassestsnsrserassarsrenren 52
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budget and Actual .
{Non-GAAP Basis) County Unit Bridge and Culvert Fund. ....................................... 53
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information riene ‘ 54
Schedule of the Employer’s Propomonate Share : '
" Ofthe Net Pension Liability .. SOOI OUORAR. £ |
Schedule of the County’s Conu‘ibutions rer e tsaserne b v 56
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION .
Schedule ufExpendimre'ofFederal Awards...........oovecrieenes . PRI+
OTHER INFORMATION
: Schedule of Surety Bonds for County Ofﬁclals ........... 60
: SPECIAL REPORTS
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing SIGRAGIS........c.covivrimecrenrverrers s rnsaras 62
Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Ma]or Federal Program and on
Interrial Control over Comptliance required by OMB Circular A-133..............000
Independent Auditors’ Report of Central Purchasing System, Inventory o
Control Systemn and Purchase Clerk Schedules..........covmvimsssnsisiismmemsion 66
‘Limited Internal Control and Compliance Review Management Report. ...... . 70
72



- HERZOG CPA COMPANY, PLLC
' Angela T. Herzog, CPA

12 98 Place Boulevard  P.O. Box 17986 » Hattiesburg, Mmsmsnppx 39404
Phone 601-271-8860  Fax 601-271-8921

- 1020 Northpark Drive ¢ Ridgeland, Mississippi 39157

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
June 8, 2016 - |

Members of the Board of Supervisors
Rankin County, Mississippi

| . Report on the Financial S_tatements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each ntajor fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Rankin County, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30,

20 15, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of

the County’s primary government as listed in' the table of contents.
M ment” i ibility he Financis
Management is responhble ftn' the pteparatmn and fair presentation of these financial statemettts in accordance with

accounting principles generafly accepted in the United States of America; this includes thé' design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of ﬁnancml statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
Aud tors’ ili

- Our responmblhty is to express opinions on these financial statements based on ot audit. We conducted our audit

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Thosc stindards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtam reasonable assurance about-
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audtt involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk dassessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design sudit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluatmg the overall presentation of the financial
statetnents, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁclent and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opmlons ,

Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Mississippi Society of Certified Public Accounitants
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Bagis for Adv inion on the iate Discrete sented Co! ent Units

The financial statements do not include financial data for the County’s legally separate component units,
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America reqire the financial data for those’
component units to be reported with the financial data of the County’s primary government unless the County also
issues financiai statements for the financial reporting entity that include the financial data for its component units.
The County has not issued such reporting entity financial statements. The amount by which this departure would
affect the assets, liabilities, net position, revenues and expenses of the aggregate discretely presented component
umits is not reasoriably determmable

Adv inion

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the “Basis for Adverse Opinion on the

. Aggregate Discretely Presented Compone'nt Units” paragraph, the financial statements referred to above do not

present fairly, the financial position of the aggregate discretely presented component units of Rankin County,
Mississippi, as of September 30, 2015, or the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in-
acoordance with accounting prmclples generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for i inion on the Gov: ental Activities

* As discussed in Note 10 to the financial statements, the County has not recorded a liability for other

postemployment benefits in the governmental activities and, accordingly, has not recorded an expense for the
cutrent period change in that lisbility. Agccounting principles geperally aocepted in the United States of America
require that other postemployment benefits attributable to employee services already rendered be accrued as
liabilities and expenses as employees earn the rights to the benefits, which would increase the liabilities, reduce the
net assets and charge the expenses of the governmental activities. The amount by which this departure would affect
the liabilities, net'assets and expenses of the governmental activities is not reasonably determmable

Unmodifed ninions

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter discussed in the preceding sections, the financial statements
referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Rankin County, Mississippi, as of
September 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Required Supp!ememary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Umted States of America require that the Management s Discussion

“and Analysis, the Budgetary Comparison Schédule and corresponding notes, the Schedule of the Employer’s

Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of the County’s Contributions, and corresponding
notes be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
‘essential part of financial reporting fot placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United.States of America, which consisted of inquiriss
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We-do not express an opinion or provide any. assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do net provide us with sufficient evidence to express-an opinion or
provide any assurance. :

Memberof the American Institute of Certified Public Aocounl:mts and the Mlss:ssnppt Society of Certified Pubhc Aooountams




- Omission of Required Suppl Info

| Rankin County, Mississippi, has omitted the Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Postemployment Benefits that -

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governinental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of ﬁnanaal

. reporting for placing the basic financial statemenits in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.

Our opinion on the basic financial statemnents is not affected by this missing information.
o) me er Inf

Our audit was conducted for the purpese of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively coinprise

Rankin County, Mississippi’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal

Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governmenis, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the

basic financial statements, Such informatien is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates -

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements, The Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been subjected to the audltmg procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to.prepare the basic financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves; and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our apinion, the Schedulé of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fau-ly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. -

The Schedule of Surety Bonds for County Officials has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Requi Gov. entu'tfnS dar
In accordance with Govemnent Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 8, 2016, on our

consideration of Rankin County, Mississippi’s internal control over financial reporung and on our tests of its -
corapliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The

~purpose of that report is 10 describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial repoiting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Rankin County, Mississippi's internal control over financia! reporting and compliance.

Herzog CPA Company, PLLC

Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Mississippi Society of Certified Public Accountants
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 38, 2015

ODUCTIO

The discussion and analysis of Rankin County's financial performance provides an overall narrative review of the
County's financial activities for the year ended September 30, 2015. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to
look at the County's performance as a whole; readers should also review the notes to the basic financial statements

. 'and the financial statements to enhance their understanding of the County's financial pen'onnance '

Rankin County is located in Central Mississippi along Interstate [-20. The pOpulauon, accordmg to the 2010 census,
is 141,617. The local economic base is dnven by refail, mdustnal and service,

FINANCIAL HIGH

Rankin County remains finanéially stable. The County, through the Board of Supervisors' and County
Administrator's Office continues to excel in fiscal management by employing sound fihancial pianning, disciplined

- budgeting and strong internal’ comrols ~The County is committed o maintaining sound fiscal management to meet
' the challenges of the future.

There was an increase in expens;cs of $5,448,081 from the prior year.

Total net position decreased $(28,350,089) of which $(32, 933 ,983) was a prior penod &djusunent This r:presenu a
16% decrease from the prior fiscal year.

The County had $68,640,901 in total revenue, which represents an increase of $1,119,112 or 2% increase from the’
_prior year. Property tax revenues account for $42,442,074 or 62% of total revenues. Revenues in the form of

revenyes for operating and capital grants and contributions accounted for $4,502,914 or 7% of total revenues.
Revanues in the form of charges for services accoumed for $11,698, 550 or 17% of total Tevenues.

The County had $76,803,861 in total expenditures, ‘which represents an increase of $4, 592 ,858 or 6% i mcrease from
the prior fiscal year.

: Among major funds, the General Fund had $35,696,596 in revenues and $32,034, 936 in expendltures The General

Fund's fund balance increased $2 016,344 over the prior year.
Capnal asseis, net of accmnulated depreciation, increased by $8,761,317 over the prior year.

Long-tenn debt payments were $5, 982,236 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. Tlus was a-total decrease
in long-term debt of $(513,167). )



OVERVIEW O CIAL STATEMENT

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Courity's basis financial
statements. The: County's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) Government-wide
financinl statements. 2) Fund financial statements and 3) Notes to the basic financial statements. Reqmred
Suppld‘nentary lnfonmtion is included in addition to the basic financial statements, '

Figure 1 - Required Components of the Cqunty‘s Annual Report

| Management's Basie Financial Required
‘Discussion and. Statements . Suppleqi:entary
. Analysis : Information
T [ I~
Government- - Fund Financial Notes to the
Wide Financial Statements Financial
Statements - Statements

Sﬁmmal}' —————————— e tai] '

Figire 1 shows how required parts of this annual rcplort are arranged and relate to one another.




* Figure 2 summarizes the major features of the County's financial statements, including the portion of the County's

government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this section of Managemcnt’s
Discussion and Analysis explains the structure and content of each of the statements.

Figure 2 - Major Features of the County's Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government- S , \
Wide Financial Fund Financigl Statemeats
Staiements . '
' Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
_ . Funds Funds ‘Funds
Scope ~ Entire County AN Activities of the Activities of the The County is the
) government County that are not County that upernte trustee or agent for
(except fiduciary | business-type or similar to private someone else's
funds) and fiduciary in nature businesses resources
- component units :
[ Required . * Statement of * Balance sheet « Statement of net "e Statement of
finsncial’ _ net position * Statement of position fiduciary
" statements + Statement of revenues, * Statement of assets and
activities expenditures revenues, liabitities
snd changes in expenses and ‘
fund halances i:han‘ges in net
position
* Statement of cash
. flows . .
Accounting Accrual’ Modified agcrual Accrual accounting  Accrial accounting
basis and accounting and accounting and and economic " and economiec
- measurement economic current finsncial resources focus resources focus
focus resources focus resources focus
" Type of asset, All assets, deferred [ Only assets and deferred  All assety, deferred All assets, deferred
deferred outflow, |, outflows, liabilities, | outflows expected to be  outflows, liabilities, outflows, liabilities,
. liability, and deferved inflows | used up and liabilities anddeferredinflows  and deferred inflows
deferred both financial and and deferred inflows ‘both financial gnd ‘ both short.and
inflow capital and short |that come due duringthe  capital, and short long term
information and long term year or soon thereafier; and long term
no capital assets
inclnded )
ﬁ'l‘ype of _All reveniies and Revenues for which All revenues and All revenues and
inflow/ expenses during ~ cash is received expenses during year, . expenses during .
outflow year, regardless during or soon after regardiess of when year, regardiess of
information of when cash is the end of the year; cash is receivedor - " when cash is
" received or paid expenditures when paid received or paid
' goods or services are ‘
received and-
payment is doe
during the year or
soon thereafter
9




Governmept-Wide Fmanclal Statements. The government-wlde financial statements are designed to prowde
r&ade:s with a broad overview of the County finances, in a manner similar to private-sector businesses,

The statement of net posution presents information on all County assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases'in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how net position changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net position are reported as scon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some

items that w1ll result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of these govemment-wide financial statements distinguish fumctions of the County fhat are principally

supported by taxes and intergovetnmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended
't recover all or part of theircosts through user fees and charges (business-type activities), The governmental

activities of the County include general government; public safety; public works (roads and bridges); health and
welfarg; culture and recreation; conservation of natural resources; economic development; and interest on long-term
debt.

These compaonent units are not included in our basic ﬁnanclal staternents:

Rankin County Economic Development Authority
Rankin County Human Resource Agency
Cleary Water, Sewer, and Fire Protection District -
Evergreen Fire Protection District

- Lake Harbor Fire Protection District

Reservoir Fire Protection District
Robinhood Water, Sewer, and Fire Protection District
Southwest Rankin County Fire Protection District
Star Fire Protection District
chhland Creek Watershed Dramage sttmt

R Y ERE)

The Government-wide Financial Statements-can be found on pages 17 and 18 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources

that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County uses fund accounting to ensure and .
demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories:

. govqmmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide' financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
govemnmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as
on balances of spendable resources available -at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a county's near-term financing requirements. Governmenta! funds inchude the general special revenues,
debt semce, and capital project funds,

Because of the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide finaricial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the "Governmental Funds Balance
Sheet” and the "Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances™ provide
a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities, These
reconcllmtmns are on page 20 and 22, respectwe].y .

10



The County maintains “individua governmental funds .in accordance with the Mississippi County Financial

Accounting Manual. ‘Information is presented separately in the gmrernmental funds Balance Sheet and in the -
govemmental funds Statemnent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for all major funds. All .

other non-major funds are combined together and presented in thesé reports as other governmental ﬁmds
The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 19 and 21 of th:s report.

Proprietary Funds are used to account for the activities of the self-msurance mtemal service fund

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the Coumy govemment .

Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the County's own programs, The accrual basis of accpynting is used for fiduciary funds.
The County is responsible for ensuring that the asséts reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.

The County's fiduciary activities are presented in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities, which can

be found on page 26 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements provide additional mfonnanon that is essential to a full understanding of the data

. provided in the govemment-wide and fund financial statements. The notes are not included in this report; however,

we expect them to be included in the Audit Report.

In addmon to the basic ﬁnanclal statements ‘and accompanymg notes, this report also’ presents Required

Supplementary Information concerning the County's budget process and pension standards.

The County adopts an annual operating budget for all governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement has

. been provided for the General Fund and each additional major special revenue fund. Th]s required supplementary

information can be found on pages 51 through 56 of this report.

Addmonally, a Schedule of Expendltm'es of Federal Awards is required by OMB Circular A-133 and can be found
on page S8 of this report,

GOVERNMENT- WIDE FINANCHL ANALYSIS

Net Position - Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of government's ﬁnancml posmon In the case
of Rankin County, assets exceeded liabilities by $147,199,001 as of September 30, 2015 of which $£147,199,001

. Was goverumental activities and nione was business-type activities.

"The largest portion of the County's assets, 61% reflects its mvestment in capital assets (e.g. roads bridges, land,

buildings, mobile equipment, firniture & equlpment, leased property under capital lease, and construction in
progress) less related ontstanding debt used to acquire such assets. The County uses thes¢ capital assets to provide
services to its citizens. .

The County's financial position is a product of several financial transactions including the net results df activities, -

the acquisition and paymcnt of debt, the aoqulsltlon and disposal of capital assets and the depreciation of capital
assets.

1t



The following table presents a summary of the County's net position at September 30, 2015, ns compared to

September 30, 2014.

Current Assets
Non-Current Assets

“Total Assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources-

Current Liabilities

_ Long-term Debt outstanding

Net Pension Liability -
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position' ‘

Net Imrestment in Capital Assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Goveljnmtal
Activities
2015 2014
$111,404,194  $ 109,583,125
177,707,734 __ 168,946,417
$289,111.928 .  $278,529,542
$ 767102 § -
$ 729012 . $ 46,032,249
56,435,036 56,948,203
43282478 .
107,007,636 102,980,452
42576303 .
12485694 113225916
37,452,898 61,106,796
(12,739,591) 1,216,378
$ 147,199,001 175,549,090
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Changes in Net Position - Rankin County's total revenues for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 were .

$68,640,901. The total cost for all services prowdsd was $64,057,007. The decrease in net position was - -

$(28,350,089). The following table presents a summary of the changes in net position for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2015, as compared to fiscal year September 30,2014,

Governmental
Activities
_ W5 . 20M
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 11,698550  $ 10,929,906
Operating Grants and Revenues 3,259,196 .3,668,734
Capital Grants'and Contributions 1243718 1,984,051
General Revenues: . :
Property Taxes 42442074 40377427,
Road and Bridge Privilege Taxes . 2,019472 . 1,981,198
 Unrestricted Grants P 6226160 - 5821917
Other Revenue 751,731 T 2,758,556
Total Revenues 68,640,901 67,521,789
. Bxpenses: _ .
General Govenment 18,937,169 14,794,199
Public Safety . | ' 19,659,010 17,996,857
Public Works 21821751 0 22,149,666
" Health and Welfare | 1,243,684 1,260,311
“Qulture and Recteation 36,262 Xy
Conservation of Natural Resources 273390 - 269,928
Economic Development 146,382 149,772
Interest oh Long-Term Debt ‘ 1,722,759 - 1923522
" Other Debt Service Costs 216,600 -
Total Expenses 64,057,007 © 58,608,926
Prior period adjustment (32,933.983) (6,546)

. Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $ (28,350,089 'S 8906317

Governmental Activities - The following table presents the cost-of eight major functional activities of the County:
General Government, Public Safety, Public Works, Health & Welfure, Culture and Recreanon, Conservation of
Natura! Resources, Economic Development, and Interest on Long-term deb. .



The table also shows each function's net cost (total cost less charges for services generated by the activity and
intergovernmental aid provided for that activity.) The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on Rankm
“ County's taxpayers by each of these functions.

2015 : 2014

, . o Total Costs Net Costs Total Costs *~ Net Costs

General Govemment ' $ 18937,169 $ (15178657)  § 14,794,199 $§ (12,397,838)
Public Safety . . , 19,659,010  (13322,244) 17996857 (14,310,056)

. Public Works o 21,821,751  (15980.262) 22,149,666  (12,026013)

Health and Welfare < 1,243,684 (978,987) 1,260,311 | (884,435)

Culture and Recrestion o 36,262 (36,262) 64671 (64,671)

" Conservation of Natural Resources 273,390 (273,390) - 269,928 (269,928}

Economic Development and Agsistance | 146,382 (146,382) 149,772 {149,772)

. Interest on Long-term Debt - 172759 (1,722,759} 1923522 . - (1,923,522)

Other Debt Service Costs \ . 216,600 (216,600) . - -

Total ' $. 64,057,007 $ (47,855,543)  $ 58,608,926 § (42,026,235)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY'S FUNDS

' 'Govermxlleutal Funds - At the close of the fiscal yeer, Rankin County's governmental funds reported a combined

fund balance of $61,343,745, a decrease of $(1,590,519). The primary reasons for this decrease is hlghllghted in the
analysis of governmental activities.

The General Eimd is the principal operating fund of the County. The inctease in the fund balance of the General
Fund for the fiscal year was $2,016,344, ‘

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS OF MAJOR FUNDS

" Over the.course of the year, Rankin County revised its annual operating budget on several occasions. At the end of

the fiscal year, Rankin County amended its budget to reflect actual revenues received and expenditures made.

A schedule showmg the Orlgmal and final budget amounts compared 1o the County’s actual fingncial activity for the
General Fund and other major special revenue funds is provlded in this report as reqmred supplementary

‘information.

- CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets - As of September 30, 2015, Rankin County's tetal capital assets were SI?‘? 707,734. This includes
roads, bridges, other infrastructure, land, bulidjngs moblle equipment, fumiture and equipment; and leased property'

- under capital leases.

Total accumulated depreclatton as of September 30, 2015 was $193,918,280, including $5,307,445 of depreclanon
expense for the year. The balance in total net position was $123,434,130 at year-end,

Additional quormatlon on Rankin County's capital assets can be Foungi in Note 6 on Page 37 of this report.

14



Debt Administration - At September 30, 2015, Rankin County had $56,435,036 in long-term debt outstanding.
This includes general obllgatlon bonds, other loans, compensated absences and obligations under caplml leases. Of
this debt, $6,431,319 is due within one year.

: T_‘he State of Mississippi limits the amount of debt & county can issue to generally 15% of total assessed value. The

County's outstanding debt is significantly below its current limit of 190 million dollars.

LONG-TERM DEBT ANALYSIS

Additional mfonnatlon on Rankm County's long-term debt can be found in Note 12 on pages 41 - 42 of this report
CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

* This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors witha

general overview of the County's finances and to dernonstrate the County's accountability for the funds it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional information, please contact the Rankin County
Administrator's office at 211 East Goveriment St., Ste. A, Brandon, MS 39042,
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RANKIN COUNTY
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2015

ASSETS -
~ Cash
Investments
Accrued interest receivable
Property taxreceivable
-Accounts receivable, (net of allowance for uncollectibles of $983,171)
Fines receivabie, (net of allowance for uncollectibles of $7 620,689)
Capital keases receivable
. Intergovemmental receivables
- Capital assets, net

' Total Assets \
‘Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Deferred outflows related to pension
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
LIABILITIES =

Claims paysable

Claims and judgments payable

Intérgovernmental payables

-Accrued interest payable

Other accrued liabilities

Other payables-amounts held in custody

Long-term liabilities

Due within one year:
. Capital related liabilitics
Due in more than one year;
* Capital reiated liabilities
Non-capital Liabilities
Net Pension Liability
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Uneamed interest on capital leases
Unecamed revenue - property taxes

-Total Deferred lmflows of Resources
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
"Expendable:

Debt Service

Public Safety

Public Works

Capital projects

Unrestricted .

Total Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$

- Governpental Activities

38,098,891
27,722,793
182,735
42,573,197
187,271
1,196,906
63,126
1379275
177,707,734,

289,111,928

7,671,032

7,671,032

964,466
637,132
3,647,384
C 621,945
330,508
1,088,687

6,431,319
48,790,721

1,212,996
43,282,478

107,007,636

3,126
- 42,573,197

-~ 42,576,323

122,485,694

1,919,142
. 3,679,647
31,338,259
515850 -
(12,739,591)

147,199,001
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"RANKIN COUNTY
Statement of Activities ,
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Exhibit2 .
Net (Expense) Revenue and
venues Changes in Net Position
. Operating© - Capital Primary Government
‘ . Charges for ~ Grants and - Grents and Govemmental
' Functions/Programs Expenses Services  Contributions Contributions Activities
* Primary govemment:
Govemmental activities . : .
General govemnment $ (18937,169) § 3758512 § -8 -8 - (15178,657)
Public safety " {19,659,010) 3,365,136 2,971,630 . - (13,322,244)
“Public works - (21,821,751) 4,574,902 22,869 1,243,718 (15,980,262)
Health and welfare (1,243,684) - 264,697 - {978.987)
Culture and recreation (36,262) - - - (36,262)
Conservation of natural resources (273,390) : . - - (273,390)
Economic development and assistance (146,382) Co. - : - '(146,382)
. Interest on fong-termdebt (1,722,759) . - - - (L,72,759)
Other debt service costs (216,600) - 4216,600) s
Total Governmental Activities $ !64:057‘032! $ 11 698,550 3 3,259 196 $ 1,243,718 * § (47,855 543)
_ General Revenues:
Property taxes $ 42,442,074
Road & bridge privilege taxes 2019472
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific pmgmms 6,226,160
Unrestricted investment income 804,483
Miscellaneous - 947,248
" Total General Revenues - 52,439437
-Change in Net Position 4,583,894
Net Position - Beginning, as pmvlously reponed 175,549,090
Pricr Period Adjustments (32,933,983)
Net Position-Beginning, as restated 142,615,107
Net Position - End of the Year $ + 147,199,001

The notés to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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o RANKIN COUNTY :
Reeoncllmtion of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to.the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2015 -
E I -I-I'l ;-!
. : Amount
Total Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds ' C : - 8 61,343,745
Amnunts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Pos ltmn are different because
1. Capltal _assets are. used in govemmental activities and are not financial resources and, therefore, |
are not reported in the funds, net of accunmlated depreciation of$193,918,280. 1T 07.734
.2, Other long term assets are not available to pay for cumrent period expenditures and, therefore, |
" are deferred in the funds. n - 1,384,177
3. Capital lease receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, - '
are deferred in the funds. . - 60,000
- 4, Long-termhabr]mes are not due'and payable in the cun-ent period and therefore, are not . .
reported in the funds. ’ ) _ . ©.(56,435,036)
5. Inte'rna] Service Funds are used by nnlragen'lent to charge the costs of insurance to individual
_funds. The assets and liabilties of the Internal Service Funds are included in the '
'govemmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. , ' (628,228)
6. Accrued Interest PayabE ' . o (621,945
" 7. Deferred Qutflows related to pension ability are applicable to future periods, and therefore are .
not reported in the funds. ) : 7,671,032
8. Net pension obhgattons are not due a.nd payable in the cunent period and, therefore are not
reported in the funds. S {43,282 478)
Total Net Position - Govemmental Activities ' - ' - s !413199,001

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RANKIN COUNTY \
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Chnnges
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Net changes in fand balances - goveramental funds .
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because

1. Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However, in the Statement of Activities the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as deprecistion expense,
'Thus, the chany in net position differs from the change in fund balances by the amoint that capital
outlays of $14,418,688 exceeded depreciation of $5, 307,445 in the current period

2. Inthe Statement of Activities, only gains and losses from the sale of capital Bssets are reported, whereas

in the Governmental Funds, proceéds from the sale of capital assets increase financial resources, Thus,

the change in net position differs from the chadge in fmd belances by the amount of the net gain of $2,620
and the proceeds from the sale and dompenmlton of assets of $684,920 in the current period.

' 3. -Fine revenue recognized on the modified ‘cctual basis in the funds during the current year is feduced because

prior year recognition would have been rcqmed on the statement of activities using the ﬁ.lll-accrual basis of
nocomtmg - .

4. Solid waste revenne recognized on the modified accrual besis in the funds during the current year is reduced
because prior year rgcognition would have been required on the Statement of Activities using the fuft-accrual
basis of accounting

5. In the Statement of Activities, only interest income from payments received on capitat leases are reported,
wheress in the overnmental funds, both principat and interest payments received increase financial

resowces. ' Thus, the change in net position differs from the change in fimdbalances by the principal collections
on the capital leases. . .

6. DeMt proceeds provide current financial resources to Governmental Funds, but issuing dett increases long-term -
liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental fimds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.. Thus, the change in net position differs

7. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the Governmental Fumds, expeudmms are not
 recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with expendable availahle financial resowrces. However, -
in the statement of activities, which is presented on the accrual besis, expenses and lisbilitics arc reported -
regardless of when financial resowrces are available, In addition, interest on long-term debt is recognized under
* - the mbdified accrual basis of accounting when due, rather than as it accrues. Thus, the change in net position
differs from the change in fund balances by a combination of the following item;
The amount of incregse in compensated absences :
The amount of increase in accrued mterea payable
The amortization of:
Premiums on refunding bonds
Discount on refunding bonds
8. Some items reported in the Statement of Activities relating to the implementation of GA33 68 are not rﬂported mn lhe )
government fnds. These activities include:
" Recording of pension expense for the current period .
Recording of contributions made subject to the measwement date.
Recording of reduction in pension expense for amowunts included in net pension Lability.

b. . An Internal Service Fut';d is used by mahagement to ciarge the cost of inswrance to individual funde. The net
revenue (expense) is reported within governmental activities. :

Change. in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

from the change in fund belances by the amount that debt repayments of $5,982,236 exceeded delit prooeech of 5,612,788.

Exhibit 4-1

© Amount

S (1,590,519)

9,111,243

(682,300)
30,364

(9,478)

(28,000)

369,448

{14,706)
(16,242)

142,958
(13,945)

(5.158,523)
743,811
2,099,035

L (399252)

$ 4,583,894
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RANKIN COUNTY
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund
September 30, 2015
Exhibit §
Gove mmental Activities .
Internal
Service
‘Fund
ASSETS -
Cash o ' , $ 8,904
. Total Assets : $ 8904
LIABILITIES .
Claims and judgments payable ' $ 637,132
Total Liabilities - | 637,132
NET POSITION .
Restricted for health insurance ' . (628.228)
“Total Net Position 3 (628.228).

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

. , RANKIN COUNTY . . o
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position-
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015
. ) Eshibit 6
Govemmental Activities
Self-Insurance
Internal Service
: Fund
Operating Revenues
Premiums ) : $ . 4,907,817
 Total Operating Revenues 4,907,817
Operating Expenses .
Claims payments 6,309,349
Administrative . 7,846
. Total Operating Expenses 6,317,195 -
Operating Income (Loss) (1,409,378)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income , 126
Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) 126
Net Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions,
Special and Extraordinary Items and Transfers (1,409,252).
Capital Contributions ‘
* Transfers In 1,010,000
Total Capital Contributions 1,010,000
" Changes in Net Position 399,252y
. Net Position - Beginning (228976) |
Net Position Ending $  -(62828)



RANKIN COUNTY
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund
For the Yesr Ended September 30, 2015

Eshibit 7
Govemnmental Activities .
Self-Insurance
Internal Service
. . Fund
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts for premiums ' : $ 4,907,817
Payments for claims ' O (6113874)
Payments to administrator for services ' (7,846)
Net Cash (Used) by Operating Activities ' (1,213,903)
Cash Flows Froim Noncapital Financing Activities , .
Opemting transfers in . - o 1,010,000
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities - 1,010,000
Cash Flows From Investing Activities .
Interest and dividends on investments . ' 126
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities ' : _ 126
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivajents 203,777y
-Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 212,681
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year : , $ 8904
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: : '
" Operating (loss) e $  (1,409378)
Changes in assets and liabilities: ' ‘
Increase in élajms and judgments lability . 195,475
Total Adjustments , ‘ 195,475
. Net Cash (Used) by Operating Activities . s (1,213903) -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. '
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RANKIN COUNTY
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
September 30’. 20158 '
Exhibit 8
Agency
Furids
ASSETS : :
Cash $ 2,450,878
Due from other finds 330,508
Total Assets . $ 2,781,386
. LIABILITIES ' .
Amounts held in custody for others . $ 2,781,386

Total Liabilities - ‘ $ 2,781,386

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RANKIN COUNTY
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Financial Reporting Entity

Rankin County is a political subdivision of the State of Mlsmssnppl The County is governed by an elected
five-member Board of Supervisors. Accountmg principles generally accepted in the United States of
America require Rankin County to present these financial statements on the’ primary government and its
component units which have significant operanonal or ﬁnanclal relatlonshlps with the County.

Management has chosen to omit from these financial statements the follo.wmg component units which have
significant operational or financial relationships with the County. Accordingly, the financial statements do
not include the data of all of the Courity’s component units necessary for reporting in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Rankin County Economic Development Authority
. Rénkin County Humarn Resource Agency '
Cleary Water, Sewer and Fire Protection District

Evergreen Fire Protection District

Lake Harbor Fire Protection District

Reservoir Fire Protection District

Robinhood Fire Protection District

Southwest Rankin County Fire Protection Dlstrlct
Star Fire Protection District

Rlchland Creck Watershed Drainage Dlstnct

State law pertaining to county government provides for the mdependent election of eounty officials. The
following elected and appointed officials are-all part of the County legal entity and thérefore are reported as
part of the primary government financial statements.

Board of Supervisors

Chancery Clerk

Circuit.Clerk

Justice Court Clerk

Purchase Clerk

Tax Collector , - . '
‘Tax Assessor ' :

Sheriff

. Bésis of Presentation

The Cmmty s basic financial statements consist of govemment-wme statements, including a Statement of Net

Position and a Statement of Actmtnes and fund financial statements, which provide a detalled level of
financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements:
The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display mfonnaﬂbn concernmg the County as a
whole. The Statements include all nonfiduciary activities of the ptimary government, For the most part, the

effect of interfund activity has been removed from these stateménts. Governmental activities are generally
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange revenues,
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RANKIN COUNTY
Notes to Financial Statements .
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 |
o of Significant Accounting Policies ipa

Basis of Presentation-conthuéd ‘

The Statement of Net Position preserits the financial condition of the governmental activities of the- County at

'year-end. The Government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and

program revenues for each function or program of the County’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and therefore, are clearly

- identifiable to a particular function., Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goodé or

services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other revenues not classified as program revenues,
are presented as general revenues of the County, with certain limited.exceptions. 1ntema! service fund
balances have been eliminated against the expenses and program revenue. The comparison of direct
expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing
or draws from the general revenues of the County.

Fund Financial Staterents:

Fund financial statements of the County are organized inte funds, éach of which is considered to be separate

~ accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that

constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into
govertimental, proprietary; arid fiduciary. Major individual Governmental Furids and major individual
Enterprise Funds are reported as separate columns in the fund ﬂnanc:al statemenu Nonmajor funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column. -

. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The Government-wide, Proprigtary Funds and Fiduciary Funds financial statements are presented using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accountmg. Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used, regardless of when
the refatéd cash flows take place. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are
levied. Shared revenues are recognized when the provider government recognizes the liability to the County.
Grants are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Agency funds
have no measurement focus, but use the accrual basis of accounting,

The County’s Proprietary Funds apply all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements and orily the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins of the Commlttee on Accounting Procedure.

" The revenues and expenses of Propnetary Funds are classified as operating or nonoperating. Operatmg

revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a Pmpnetary Fund's
pnmary operations. .All other revenues and expenses are reported as nonoperating.

Govenunental financial statements are presented using a current financial resources measurement focus and

the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period when they are

both measurable and available to finance operations during the year or to liquidate liabilities existing at the

end of thé year. Available means collected in the current period or within 60 days after year end to liquidate

lizbilities existing at the end of the year, Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the

-amount. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period when the related fund liabilities are incurred,

Debt service expenditures and expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are
recognized only when payment is due. Property taxes, state appropriations, and federal awards are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
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. RANKIN COUNTY _
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

of Significant A, ing Policies-contitiued

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting-continued

The Colmly reports the followiné méjor Governmental Funds:

General Fund - This fund is used to account for all activities of the general government for which a separate .
fund has not béen established.

Mmﬂ%mmg - This fund is used to account for momes from spec:fic revenue sources
that are restricted for road maintenance.

gmmw This fund is used to account for monies from speclﬁc revenues
sources that are restricted for meintenance and instaltation of bridges and culverts.

m@mmﬂqjmm - These ﬁmds are used to account for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, general obligation bond principal, interest and related costs.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES _

Special Revenu¢ Funds — These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted to expendmues for specified purposes. Special Revenue Funds account for, among -

others, certain federal grant programs, taxes levied with statutorily defined distributions, and other resources
restncted as to purpose,

, Debt Service m These funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment

of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs

- Qgg_@mrgggs_ﬂmg These funds are used to account for ﬁnanclal resources to be used for the acquisition

or construction of major capital facilities. Such resources are derived principally from proceeds of genera]
obligation bond issues and federal grants.

" PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

/
mm_mgg These funds are used to account for those operatwm that prowdc services to nther

' departments or agencles of the government, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The
. County s interna] service fund reports on self-insurance programs for employee medical and dentnl benefits.

" FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

Age__ncg Fggds These funds account for various taxes, deposnts and other monies collected or held by the
county, acting it the capacity of an agent, for dxsmbuuon to other govemtnental units or designated

" beneficiaries.

. Account Classiﬁcatiqﬁs.

The account classifications used in the financial statements conform to the broad i:iassﬂ' mons '
recommended in Governmental Accauntmg, Auditing and Financial Repore‘mg as issued in 2005 by the -
Government Finance Officers Association. *

4
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RANKIN COUNTY
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies-continued -

- Depostts and Investments.

State faw authorizes the County to invest ih interest bearing time certificates uf deposit for penods of

_ fourteen days to one year with depositories and in obligations of the U. S. Tmswy State of Mississippi, or

any county, municipality, or school district of this state. Further, the County may invest in oertam repurchase
agreements.

Cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits, all certificates of deposit, and cash equivalents, which are
short-term, hlghly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash (generally three months. or less).
Investments in govemmental securities are stated at fair value.

. Recelvabies.

- Rseewables are reported net of allowances for uncollectible accounts, where applicable;

Interﬁmd Transactions and Balances.

Transactions between funds that are representative of short-term lending/borrowing arrangements, and

' transactions that have not resulted in the actual transfer of cashi at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as

“due to/from other funds.” Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities
are climinated in the Statement of Net Position. -

 Coptal st

. Capital acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in Governmental Fund statements and the

related assets are reported as capital assets in the.applicable governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. All purchased capital assets ar¢ stated at historical cost where records
are available and at an estimated historical cost where no reconds exist. Capital assets include significant
amounts of infrastructure which have been valued at estimated historical cost. ‘The estimated historical cost
was based on replacement cost multiplied by. the consumer price index implicit price deflator for the year of
acquisition. The extent to which capital assets costs have been estimated dnd the methods of estimation are
not readily available. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the time of
donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of assets of matenaily
extend their respective lives are not capitalized; however, 1mprovements are capltallzed Interest expenditures

. _are not capltahzed on capital assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

of Significant Accounting Policies-contin

- Capital Assets-continued

Capitalization thresholds (dollar value above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset accounts)
and estimated useful lives of capital assets are reported in the govermment wide statements and Proprietary
Funds. Depreciation is caiculated on the straight-line basis for all assets, except land. A full year’s
depreciation expense is taken for all purchases and sales of capital assets during the year. The following
schedule details those thresholds and estimated useful lives:

Capitalization Estimated

Thresholds - . Useful Life

Land $ 0 N/A

Infrastructure . : 0. . 20-50 years

Buildings . ) 50,000 40 years

" Improvements othér than buildings 25,000 20 years
Mobile equipment - . 5,000 5-10 years

Furniture and equipment 5,000 © 3.7 yeam

Leased property under capital leases

. * Leased property capitalization policy and estimated usefial life will correspond with the amounts for the

asset classification, as listed above

long-term Liabilities.

Long-term liabilities are the unmatured principal of bonds, loans, notes or other forms of noncurrent or long-
term general obligation indebtedness. Long-term liabilities are not limited to liabilities from debt issuances,
but might aiso include liabilities on lease-purchase agreements and other commitments.

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other lung-l:eml obligations are reported as

Habilities in the governmental activities, Statement of Net Position.

Equity Classifications.

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets inchuiding restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes.or other bormwmgs
attributabie to the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets.

Restrictéd net position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use- elther by extemal groups
such &s creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.:

Unrestricted net posmon — All other net position not meeting the definition of “restricted” or “net mvestmcnt
in capital assets.”
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RANKIN COUNTY

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015
Smgm- of ggmﬁcgt Accounting Policies-continued

Eqmty Clasaﬁcatlons—contmued

" Fund Financial Statements:

Find balances for governmental funds are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for

. wlnch amounts in those funds can be spent.

‘Govenment fund balance i is classified as nons;:endable restricted, committed, as.ﬂgned or unassigned The

following are descriptions of fund classiﬁcatmns ased by the County:

Restricted fund bd!ance inchudes amounts that have constraints placed upon the use of the resources either by
an exterrial party or imposed by law through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation. -

Assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the County's intent to be used for a speé;ﬁc
purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. Far governmental funds, other than the general fund, this

" is the residual amount within the-fund that is not classified as nonspendable and is neither restricted nor

committed. Assignments of fund balances are created by the Board of Supervisors pursuant to auﬂmnzat:dn

; established by the policy adopted by the County.

| Unassigned ﬁmd balance is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents

fund balance that hias not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigied
to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds if expenditures incurred for specific purposes
exceeded the amounts restricted, committed or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a
neganve unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed,
assigned, or unassigned) resources are available, it is the County's gerieral policy to use resiricted resources
first. When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which unrestricted (committed, assigned, and
unassigned) resources are available, and amounts in any of these unrestricted classifications could be used, it

. is the County's general pohcy to spend committed resources first, followed by assigned amounts, and then
- unassigned amounts. .

. Property Tax Revenues.

.I\iumerous statutes exist under which the Board of Supervisors may levy property taxes. The selection of

authorities is made based on the objectives and responsibilities of the County. Restrictions associated with
property tax levies vary with the statutory suthority. The amount of increase in certain property taxes is .

" limited by state law. Generally, this restriction provides that these tax levies shall produce no more than .

110% of the amount which resulted from the assessments of the previous year.

' The Board of Supervisors, each year at a meeﬁng in September, levies property taxes for the ensuing fiscal

year which begins on October 1. Real property taxes become a lien on January 1 of the current year, and
personal property taxes become a lien ot March 1 of the current year. Taxes on both reat and personal

. property, however, are due on or before February 1 of the next succeeding year. Taxes on motor vehicles

and mobile homes become a lier and are due in the month that coincides with the month of original purchase.

Accounting principles generally acceptéd in the United States of America require property taxes to be
recognized at the levy date if measurnble and available. All property taxes are recognized as revenue in the
year for which they are levied. ;

Motor vehicle and mobile home taxes do not meet the measurability and collectahility criteria for property
tax recognition because the lien and due date cannot be established until the date of original purchase occurs.
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Notes to Figancial Statements |
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

S of Significan unting Policies-continue

. Intergovernmental Revenues in Governmental Funds.

hltergovemmental revenues, consisting of grants, entitlements, and shared revenues, are usually recorded in
Govemnmental Funds when measurable and available. However, the “available” criterion applies for cértain
federal grants and shared revenues when the expenditure is made because expenditure is the prime factor for
determining eligibility. Similarly, if cost sharing or matching requirements exist, revenue recognition
depends on compliance with these requirements, :

4. Deferred Outflows of Resources.

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, repmsmts a
consumption of future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then The County has incurred deferred outflows that are related to pension

teporting,

. Compensated Absences.

The County has adopted a policy of compen,satlon for accumulated unpaid employee personal leave. No
payment is authotized for accrued major medical leave. Accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America require accrual of accumulated unpaid employee benefits as long-term in the
government-wide financial statements and Proprietary Funds financial statements. In: fund financial
statements, Goverfimental Funds report the compensated absences habllxty payable only if the payable has
matured, for example an employee resigns or retires.

. Deferred Inﬂows of Resources.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for

- _ deferred inflows of resources. The separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, -

represents as acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recogmzed as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The dcferred inflows are directly related to pension reportmg

Changes in Accountmg Standards.

Rankm County adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accountmg and Financial Reportfng far Pensiom an

. Amendment of GASB Statemient No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions

made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. Rankin County
provides its employees with pension benefits through the Public Employees’ Retirement System of
Mississippi (PERS), a mulnple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit retirement program administered by
PERS. GASB 68 requires employers participating in multiple-employer cost-sharing plans, such as PERS, to
record their proportionate share, as defined in GASB 68, of PERS’s unfunded pension liability. Rankin
County has no lega! obligation to fund this shortfall nor does it have any ability to affect funding, benefit, or

-annual required contribution decisions made by PERS. The cumulative effect of adopting GASB 68 resulted

in a $(33,266,357) restatement of net position as of October 1, 2014, which decreased previousty reported net
position. Information regarding PERS’ current funding status can be found in their Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. Information related to beginning balances for fiscal year 2014 was not available thus the
effects of GASB 68 including the related pension liability were not reported on the balance sheet or -
statemhents of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for that year.
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RANKIN COUNTY
Notes to Financial Statements -
_For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

+ Prior Period Adjustment
‘ Sign’iﬁcan; adjustments were made to beginning net position as described below:
Statement of Activities; o
Implementation of GASB 68 ' 3 (33,266,357).

Capital Assets adjustment ' 332374
' $ (32,933,983)

i Inves

"The carrying amount of the County’s total deposits with financial institutions at September 30, 2015, was

$40,549,769 and the bank balance was $42,017,318. The collateral for publi¢ éntities® deposit in financial
institutions is held in the name of the State Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi State
Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-5, Miss. Code Ann. {1972). Under this progrm the entity’s funds
are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits
of publlc funds must pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure of ‘a financial '
institution, securities pledged by.that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer 10 replace the public
deposits not covered by the Federal. Deposit Insurance Corporation. | .

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposﬂs Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a financial
institution, the County will not be able to recover deposits or collatgral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The County does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. However, the Mississippi State
Tressurer manages that risk on behalf of the County. Deposnts above FDIC coverage are collateralized by
pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the rtame of the Mississippi State Treasurer on behaif

. of the County

Inve@ents:

Investment balances at September 30, 2015, are as follows:

lnvestmem Type Maturities  Fair Value Rating .

: Money market funds Less than'l § 895,659 Not rated
Mortgage backed security Less than 1 479,266 Not rated to AAA
‘Collaferalized morigage obligations Less than 1 11,533,036 Not rated to AAA
USS. govemment bonds T 1to10 2,747,063 AA .

Municipal bonds lte 10 10,852,517 A-to AAA
Corporate bonds - ' 1to 10 1215252 AAto AAA
Total ) 27,722,793
Unrealized Gain ' (291,096) .

- Cost Basis $ 27431697
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Deposits and Investments-continued

Interest Rate IRisk: The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investments maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. However, Section 19-
9-29, Mississippi Code Ann, (1972), limits the maturity period of any investment to no more than one year.

Credit Risk: State law limits investments to thoge authorized by Section 19-9-29 and 91-13-8 Miss. Code Ann.
(1972). The County does not have a formal investment policy that would ﬂ.lrther limit its investnient choices or
one that address credit nsk ,

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the faﬁure of the-
counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments of collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. The County does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. Of the
County's $27,722,793 investment in securities, none of the underlying secuntles were held by the investment's
cointerparty on behalf of the County, not in the name of the County. :

Concentration of Credlt Risk: The County places no limit on the amount the County may invest in any one issuer.

" . More than 5 percent of the County's investments are in U. S. Govenment Bonds, Collateratized Mortgage

@

-~ Obligations and Mississippi Mumclpal Bonds. These investments are 90.66% of the County's total investments.

Investment Type Fund . Fair Valye % of Total mvestments

. ‘Municipalbonds . : Various $ 10,852,517 - 39.15%
 Collateralized mortgage obligations 11,533,036 . 41.60%
U.S. govemment bonds 2,747,063 C991%
Total , $ 251326160 . 20.66%

. The following is a summary of interfund balances at September 30, 2015:

A. Due From/To Other Funds:

Receivable Fund ) Payable Fund _ " Amount
County Road Fund General Fund $ 25349
County Bridge Fund . : General Fund : 113,919
Other Govemmental Funds General Fund 26,091
County Bond and Interest Fund General Fund . 185770
Agency Funds General Fund 330,508

. Total : ~ ' $ 912,637 "

" The receivables represent ﬂle tax revenue collected but not settled until October 20 15. All mterﬁmd balances are

expected to be repaid within one year from the date of the financial statements.
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© In d Tra ns and Balanc nti

B. Transfers In/Out

Iransferln Transfer Out Amount

. Other Governmental Funds Genera! Fund $ 5480178
Internal Service Fund : General Fund 1,010,000
Road Maintenance Fund Other Governmental Funds _ 547
GeneralFund Other Govemmental Funds 4,818,342

Total $ 11,309,067

——————

The purpose of the transfers was to transfer funds to (1) the Solid Waste Fund, (2) the Capital Projects 2008

Bond Fund, (3) the Pelahatchie Bond Service Fund, and'{(4) the self ﬁ.mded self insurance interna) service fund to

cover deficit balances in those funds.

In ntal Receivables

Intergovernmental receivables at September 30, 2015, consisted of the following:

Description Amount
Governmental Activities: ’
Legislative Tax Credit ) $ 1,241,279
_ Accounts Receivable - Federal Grants 137,996
Total Governmental Activities $.1.379.275
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(6) - Capitgl Assets

'I"he following is a summary of capital assets activity for the year ended September 30, 2015:

Balance . Prior Period’ Balance
o . Oct. 1, 2014 Additions Deletions Adjustments  Sept. 30, 2015
Non-depreciable capital assets: ' o -
Land ; 2,754,256 § - 8 - 3 - % 2,754,256
Construction in process - 6,276,975 - - 6,276,975
Total non-depreciable capital agsets 2,754,256 6,276,975 - - 9,031,231
Deprecisble capital assets: }
Infrastructure 243,578,121 5,943,031 - - 249,521,152
Buildings - 74,287,689 - - 325,409 74,613,098
Improvements other L . '
than buildings 1,955,871 - - - 1,955,871
Mobile equiprent 14,608,233 1,208,389 (1,868,077 (6,774) 13,941,711
Furniture and equipment 10,353,956 291,993 (134,260) 20,247 10,531,936
Leased property under .
capital leases 11,449,720 698,300 {117,065) - 12,030,955
Total depreciable capital assets 356,233,590 8,141,713 . (2,119402) 338,882 . . 362,594,783
. Less accurmiated deprecistion for: ’ .
' Tnfrastructure (138,332,388) (2.646,757) - - £140,979,145)
Buikli:igs (24,934,138) (1,248,118) - (6,508} (26,188,764)
* Improvements other
- than buildings (1,245,340) (37,516} - - (1,282,856)
Mbile equipment {10,124 344} (890,292} 1,227,127 - (9,?87,509)
Furniture and equipment - (8,803,711) (304,112) 104,617 - (9,003,206)
Leased property under .
capital leases (6,601,508) ©  (180,650) 105,358 . . (6,676,800)
Total accumulated depreciatioﬁ (190,041,429) (5,307,445) 1,437,102 - (6,508)  (193,918,280)
Total depreciable capital assets, net 166,192,161 2,834,268 {682,300) 332,374 168,676,503
Governmental activities capital ‘ o
‘assets, net $ 168946417 § 9,111,243 $ (682300) $ 332374 $177,707,734
37
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Capital Assets - continued

Govenuﬁeﬁtal activities:
The pribr period adjustment was to correct assets and accumulated depreciation in prior years.

Depreciation éxpense was charged to the foliowing functions:

Amouat
Governmental Activities . -
General Govemment £ 1,203,443
Public Safety . 984,390
. Public Works ' 3,113,066
Conservation of Natural Resources o - 3,687
- Economic Development 2,859
Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense b 5,307,445
laims an ents
Risk Financing:

*The County had no yearend liability for workers compensatidn bacause the County terminated their participation

in the risk pool on December 31, 2007, and a commercial insurance company began providing coverage.

The County is exposed to risk of loss relating to employee heaith, accident and dental coverage. Beginning in
2004, and pursuant to Section 25-15-101, Miss. Code Ann. (1972), the County established a risk management
fund (included as an Internal Service fund) to account for and finance.its uninsured risk of loss, The Rankin
County Board of Supervisors has extended coverage to the employees of the following public entities:

Region § Mental Health
. Rankin First :

Rankin County Human Resource Agency

Cleary Water, Sewer, and Fire Protection District

USDA Soit and Water Conservation, Rankin County District

Under thel plan, amounts payable to the risk management fund are based on actuarial estimates, Each participating
public entity, in¢luding Rankin County, pays the premium on a single coverage policy for its respective.

~ employees. Employees desiring additional and/or dependent coverage pay the additional premiuwm through a

payroll deduction.

Premium payments to the risk mansgement fund are determined on an actuarial basis. The County has minimum -
uninsured risk retention for ail participating entities, including Rankin County, to the extent that actual clairms
submitted exceed the predetermined premium. The County has implemented the following plans to minimize this
potential loss:

The County has purchased coinsurance which functions on two separate stop loss coverages: specific and -
aggregate. These coverages are purchased from an outside commercial carrier. For the current fiscal year, the -
specific coverage begins when an individual participant's claim exceeds $100,000, and the aggregate policy
covers all submitted claims in excess of $1,000,000.
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Claims and Judgments - continued
'Claims expenditure and tiabilities are reported when it is probable that 2 loss has occurred and the amount of that

loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported (IBNRs). At September 30, 2015, the amount of these llablhties was $637,132. An annlysis of claims

* activities is presented below: .
. Unpaid Claims and . -
Beginning of Fiscal ' Changes in Claim . Balance at Fiscal
Year Liability - Estimate Payments Adjustments Year End
2013-2014  § 113,646  § 6,681,699  -$(6353688) § . -  § 441,657
2014-2015 441,657 6,504,824  (6,309,349) - 637,132
Operating Leases
As Lessor:

The County receives income from property it leases under a non-cancellable opemting Iease' ‘Total income from

the lease was $140,000 for the year ended September 30, 2015. The future minimum lease receivable for the lease
is as follows: : )

Year er 30; oo Amount
2016 ‘ $ 140000
2017 . , 140,000
2018 J : ‘ ' ' 140,000
2019 . 140,000
2020 140,000
212025 | 700,000
2026-2027 : ' 280,000
Total Minimum Paymenits Required , $ 1,680,000
Capital 1 eases

AsLessor'

The County leases the tbllowmg property with varying terms and options as of September 30, 2015:

Class of Pmnertv _ L ___Amount
. Water Improvements $ 400,000
Total : , , s 400,000
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Notes ¢o Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 .

The future minimom lease receivables and the present value of the net minimum lease recewables as of
Septcmber 30, 2015, are as follows: -

Principal Interest

. Year Ending September 30; : ’ ) .
016 $ 29000 . % 2332
2017 S . 31,000 794
Total § 60,000 $ . 31%

As Lessee:

The County is obligated for the following assets acquired through capital leases as of September 30, 2015:

- Governmental

Classes of mgrtv - - Activities
Leased Property under Capital Leases \ $ 12,030,955
Less: Accumulated depreciation , : (6,676.800)

Leased Property-under Capital Leases : $ 5354155

The foilowing is a schedule by years of the total payments due as of September 30, 2015:

Govemmem: Ac!wmes
, \ __Principal ', Interest
Year Ending September 30: , .

2016 , o $ 809,757 $ 54,943
2017 628,923 105,133
2018 - : 937,341 : 89,507
2019 _ . 643,738 72,108
2020 , 387,897 60,367
2021-2025 ' 2,086,158 ' ' 155,161
Total = . : $5,493,814 $ 5371219

] ———

MML@MM

" The Rankin County Board of SUpervmors administers the County‘s health insurance plan which i authorized by

" Sections 25-15-101 et seq., Miss. Code Ann. (1972). The County's health insurance plan may be amended by the

" Rankin County Board of Supervisors. The County purchases health insurance coverage from a commercial

insurance company and offers health insurance benefit coverage through the County's heaith insurance plan. Since
retirees may obtaifi health insurance by participating in a group with active employees and consequently réceive a
health insurance premium rate differential, the County has a postemployment health care benefit reportable under

. GASB Statement 45 as a single employer defined benefit health care plan. However, the County has not recorded

a liability for other postemployment bénefits nor has the County reported the note disclosures which are required
by accounting principles generally accepted inthe United States of America, The County does not issue g publicly

" avmlable ﬁnancml report for the Plan.

40



e e

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

(11) Deficit Fund Balances of Indivi

RANKIN COUNTY
Notes to Financial Statements

| Funds

The following fund reported a deficit in net position at September 30, 2015;

Deficit Amount
_$(628.228)

Fund .
. Internal Service Fund

(12) " Long-term Debt

Debt outstanding as of September 30, 2015, cqﬁsisted of the following:

Amount Interest Final
Description and Purpose Outstanding Rate Maturity Date
Governmental Activities: '
A. General Obligation Bonds
2009 GO Bond 5 16,550,000 . 31.51.875% 6/1/2022
2008 Special Obligation Bond - 6,170,000 3.78% 12/172023
2005 M S Public Improvement 2,020,000 2.75/4.125% '9/1/2021
2005 Series 20054, ' 2,115,000 2.80/4.00% 77172020
2012 Refunding 8,775,000 2.00% 9/1/2021
. 2013 Refunding 8,925,000 2.00/3.10% 127172023
Total General Obligation Bonds § 44,555,000 '
" B. Limited Obligation Bonds ,
Series 2014 A 5 995,000 3.30% 12/17/2029
Béries 2014 B , 3,180,000 T 4.50% 12112028
Total Limited Obligation Bonds $ 4,175,000 .
C. Capital Leases: .
911 Equipment 5 4,000,000 2.44% 3/A12025
5 Case Backhoes 99,839 2.06% 8/23/2016
Fire Truck 40,171 2.06% 10/10/2016
Copier 20,443 2.22% 1112018
3 Mack Duimp Trucks 348,384 L17% 572972018
3 Mack Dump Trucks 348,384 1.77% 5/29/2018
Case Wheel Loader 122,884 1.87% 4/6/2019
Case Wheel Loader 122,884 1.8 4/6/2019
2 John Deere Motor Graders 390.825 1.83% 4612019
Total Capital Leases 3 5,493,814
D. Other Loans: .
Interlocal Agreement Pearl $ 49,790 4.46/5.32% 5/172018
Total Other Loans 49,790

o
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(12) Long-term Debt-continued

Annual debt service requirements to maturlty for the following debt reported in the Statement of Net Position are

as follows:
Governmental Activities:
. General Obligation Bonds - Limited Obligation Bonds Other Loans
Yeor Ending September 30 ~ - Principal _Interest  Principal © Interest  Principal - Interest
2016 . $ 5400000 $1,637625 $ 205000 § 248838 $ 16562 § 2621
. 2017 5,460,000 1,453,775 215,000 . 162,803 16,597 1,753
2018 . 5465000 1,302,075 220,000 153,675 - 16,631 885
2019 6,030,000 1,144,575 235,000 144,127 A .
2020 6,170,000 1,005,575 240,000 134,160 - -
2021.2025 16,030,000 1,882,456 © 1,370,000 506,025 ' - -
2026-2030 - ' - 1,690,000 184,680 . .

'$ 44,555,000 § 8,426,081 § 4,175,000 ¢ 1534,308 $ . 49,790 §$ 5,259

Legal Debt Margin — The amount of debt, excluding specific exempted debt that can be incurred by the County
is lirnited by state statute. Total outstanding debt during a year can be no greater than 15% of assessed value of

- the taxable propert‘y within the County, according to the then last completed assessment for taxation. However,
the limitation is increased to 20% whenever county issues bonds are used to repair or replace washed out or:
collapsed bridges on the public roads of the County, As of' September 30, 2015 the arhount of Outstandmg debt
was equal to 3.5 1% of the latest property assessments

. Amount Due
Balance L Balahce Within One
Oct. 1,2014 . Additions  Reductions Sept. 30, 2015 Year

Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences $ 1,227,702 §
General Obligation Bonds 49,685,000

5 (14,706) $ 121299 § -
(3,130,000) 44,555,000 3,400,000

Less: -

Discount amount on (77,010) - 9,060 (67,950) L.

Discount amount on - (39,487) . 4,885 - {34602) .

Add: ' '

Premium 782,641 . (92,075) - 696,566 -

Premium 411,305 - (50,883) 360,422 .

Limited Obligation Bonds - 4,175,000 - 4,175,000 205,000

Capital Leases 4,892,773  1437,788  (836,747) 5,493,814 809,757

Other Loans 65279 - (15,489) 49790 16,562
Total $ 56,948,203 $5612,788 $(6,125,955) § 36,435,036 '$ 6431319

Compensated absences will be paid from the fund from which the employees’ salaries were paid, whichare
generally the General Fund, the Road Maintenance Fund, the Bridge & Culvert Fund, and the Solid Waste Fund.
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RANKIN COUNTY
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Co ntjngmgies

Federal Grants — The County has received federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to audit by the
grantor agencies. Entitlements to these resources are generally conditional upon compliance with the terms and
conditions of grant agreements and applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources for
allowable purposes. Any disallowance resulting from a grantor audit may become a liability of the County. No
provision for any liability that may result has been recognized in the County’s financial statements.

Litiggtion — The County is party to legal proceedmgs many of which occur in the normal course of governmental
operations. It is not possible at the present time to estimate ultimate outcome or liability, if any, of the County
with respect to the various proceedings. However, the County’s legal counsel believes that ultimate liability
resultmg from these lawsuits will not have a matenal adverse effect on the financial condition of the County.

Mmm_mmm « The County issued general obligation bonds to provide fum;is for
constructing and improving capital facilities of the City of Pelahatchie. Such debt is being retired from pledged

'resources of these entities and, therefore, is reported as a liability of those entities. However, because general

obligation bonds are backed by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the County, the Courity remains
contingently liable for its retirement. The prmc:pal amount of the remaining general obligation debt oontmgency
outstanding at year end is as follows:

: Balance at
Description - Sept. 30, 2015
Pelahatchie Water Improvement GO. Bonds b 60,000

Total | | 5 60,000

As of September 30, 2015, the County had the following commitments:

On May 1, 2000, the Rankin County Board of Supervisors entered into an agreement with the City of Flowood to
pledge to the city; for psyment of a portion of the principal, interest, fees, and expenses of the bonds for the

. Dogwood Festival Market Project, the avails of the added incremental increase in county ad valorem taxes levied

against the real and personal property constituting the project. County ad valorem taxes for schoot district

" purposes shall not be subject to the pledge of ad valorem taxes. The pledge of tax revenues is irrevocable until

such time as the entirety of the principal, interest, fees, and expenses relating to the bonds are paid in full, In the

. event that there shall be surplus revenues on December 31, the surplus revenue shall be reimbursed to the City

" . and county on 2 pro tata basis, This agreement was amended on January 1 2015,

On September 4, 2001, the Rankin County Board of Supervisors entered into an agreement with the City of
Brandon to pledge to the city, for payment of a portion of the principal, interest, fees, and expenses of the bonds
for the Ergon Properties Project, the avails of the added incremental increase in county ad valorem taxes levied
against the real and personal property constituting the project. County ad valorem taxes for.school district
purposes shall not be subject to the pledge of ad valorem taxes. The pledge of tax revenues is irrevocable until
such time as the entirety of the principal, interest, fees, and expenses relating to the bonds are paid in full.
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RANKIN COUNTY
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

x

encies-continued

On‘Oetober 1, 2003, the Rankin County Board of Supervisors entered into an agreement with the City of Flowood
to pledge to.the city, for payment of a portion of the pnnmpal interest, fees, and expenses of the bonds for the
Dogwood Promenade, the avails of the added incremental increase in county ad valorem taxes levied against the
real and personal property constituting the project. County ad valotem taxes for school district purposes shall not

_be subject to the pledge of ad valorem taxes. The pledge of tax revenues is irrevocable until such as the entirety of

the principal, interest, fees, and expenses relating to the bonds are paid in full,

On May 31, 2004, the Rankin County Board of Supervisors entered into an agreement with the City of Flowood

. to pledge to the city, for payment of a portion of the prmclpal, mterest, fees, and expenses of the bonds for the

Lakeland Commons, the avails of the added incremental increase in county ad valorem taxes levied against the
real and personal property constituting the project. County ad valorem taxes for school district purposes shall not
be subject to the pledge of ad valorem taxes. The pledge of tax revenues is irrevocable until such time as the '

- éntirety of the principal, interest, fees, and expenses relating to the bonds are pa,ld in fudl, This agreement was

amended on January 1, 2015.

On December 6, 2004, the Rankin County Board of Supervisors entered into an agreement with the City of Pear]
to pledge to the city for a partial payment of a loan to the County to be used tp purchase land for a baseball
stadium, site work and parking lot construction. The amount pledged is $320,000 a year for twenty.years.

. On D&e’mber 6, 2004, the Rankin County Board of Supervisors entered into an agreement with the City of Pearl

to pledge to the city, for payment of a portion of the principa}, interest, fees, and expenses of the bonds for the
Bass Pro Shops/Bloomfield Project, the avails of the added incremental increase in county real and personal
property taxes from the Bass Pro portion of the project. The terms of this agreement will not exceed twenty years.

I,]-Qm' 't Venture

The County participates in the following joint veriture:

Rankin County is a participant with Scott, Simpson and Smith Counties in a joint venture autherized by Section .
39-3-9, Miss. Code Ann. (1972), to operate the Central Mississippi Regional Library System. The joint venture
was created to provide library services to the public and is governed by a five-member board of which two

. members are appointed by Rankin County and one member &ach from the other three counties. By contractual
. agreement, the County's appropriation to the joint venture was $1,677,380 in fiscal year 2015. Complete financiat

statements for the Central Mississippi Regional Library System can be obtained from 3470 Hwy 80 East, Pearl, -
MS 39208, e

Jointly izations
The County participates in the following jointly governed organizations:

Central M1531§s1pp1 Emergency Mecilcal Services District operates in a district composed.of the Counties of
Attala, Clarke, Copiah, Holmes, Lauderdale, Leake, Madison, Neshoba, Rankin, Scott, Smith, Warren, and

. Yazoo. The Rankin County Board of Supervmnrs appoints two of the 26 meémbers of the board. The County

provided no financial support in fiscal year 2015.

Central Mississippi Planning and Development District operates in a district composed of the Counties.of Copiah,
Hinds, Madison, Rankin, Warren, and Yazoo. The Rankin County Board of Supervisors appoints three of the 33
members of the board of directors. The County appropriated $25,326 for support of the district in fiscal year
2015,
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RANKIN COUNTY .
Notes to Financial Statements .
For the Year Ended September 36, 2015

Jointly Gov ned ¢ izations - contin
East Central Community Action Agency, Inc. operates in a district composed of the Counties of Leake, Neshoba, .

Rankin, Scott, and Smith. The Rankin County Board of Supervisors appoints two of the 30 board members. The
Connty provides a modest amount of support when mafsehmg funds are requu'ed for federal grants.

'Hinds Community College operates in a district composed of the Counties of Clalbome, Copiah, Hinds, Rankm

and Warren. The Rankin County Board of Supervisors-appoints one of the 15 members of the college board of

 trustees. The County appropnated $2,825,083 for maintenance and $1,120,278 for i improyement of the vollege in
' fiscal year 2015. :

Region E1ght Mental Health Commission operates in a district composed of the Counties of Copiah, Madison, .

Rankin, and Simpson. The Ranlun County Board of Supervisors appoints one member of the board of
commissioners. The County.appropriated $337,000 for support of the commission in fiscal year 2015.

gensi_cm Plan Obligations
In } "onlabwt  Pension P

Plan Description. Rankin County, Mississippi, is a member, of the Public Employees Retirement System of
Mississippi (PERS), a cost-sharing, multipie-employer, defined benefit pension plan as defined in GASB
Statement Number 68, MMM_M Membership in PERS is a condition of
employment and is granted upon hiring for qualifying emplayees of the County. Code Section 25-11-15,
Mississippi Code Ann, {1972) grants the authonty for general administration and proper operation of PERS to the -
PERS Board of Trustees (PERS Board). PERS issues a pubhcly available Comprehensive Annual Fmanclal
Repoﬂthateanbeobtamedaxﬂww,pgrs ms.gov. .

Benefits Provided. For the cost-sharing plan, partxcipating members who are vested and retire at or aﬁer-age 60
or those who retire regardless of age with at least 30 years of creditable service (25 years of creditable service for

‘employees who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011) are éntitled upon application, to annual retirement

allowance payable mouthly for life in an amount equal to 2.00% of their average compensation for each year of
creditable service up to and including 30 years (25 years for those who became members of PERS before July 1,
2011), plus 2,50% for each additional year of creditable service with an actuarial reduction in the benefit for each
year of creditable service below 30 years or the number of years in age that the member is below 65, whichever is
less. Average compensation is the average of the employee’s eamings during the four highest compensated years
of creditable service. A member may elect a reduced retirement allowance payable for life with the provision-

+ that, after death, a beneficiary receives benefits for life or for a specified number of years. Benefits vest upon -
" completion of eight years of membershlp service (four years of membership service for-those who became

members of PERS before July 1, 2007). PERS also provides cértain death and disability benefits. In the event of
death prior to retirement aliowance, the deceased member’s accumulated contributions and interest are paid to the
designated beneficiary. Benefits are established by Section 25-1 1-1 et seq., MlSSlsSlppl Code Ann (1972) and

" may be amended only by the State Leglslatum

A Cost of lemg Adjustment (COLA) payment is made to eligible retirees and beneficiaries, The COLA is equal
to 3.00% of the annual retirement allowance for each full fiscal year of retirement up to the year in which the
retired member reaches age 60 {55 for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 201 1) w1th 3 00%

- compounded for each fiscal year thereafter.
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RANKIN COUNTY .
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Pension Plan Qb‘liga_tions —continued

Contributions. Per Chapter 11 of Title 25, Mississippi Code Ann. (1972), contribution requirements of plan
members and their employers are established and may be amended only by the PERS Board. The adequacy of the
rates s assessed annually by actuarial valuation. For the year ended September 30, 2015, member employees

- were required to ¢ontribute 9.00 percent of their annuat pay, while the County’s required contribution rate was .

15.75 percent of annual covered payroll. The County’s employer contributions to PERS for the year ended
September 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 were 82,788,056, $2,722,190, and $2,474,300 (employer share). The
comtributions for the year met the required contributions.

Rg]ated to Pgm ions. At September 30 2015 Rankm County reported a llabillty of $43,282 478 for lts
proportionste share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015 and
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determinied by an actuarial valuation as of -
that date. Rankin County’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on employer contributions te PERS
for the plan’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, relative to the total employer contributions of participating
employers to PERS. At June 30, 2015, the Rankin County’s propoition was..28% which was the same % from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2014. Information related to beginning balances for fiscal year 2013 was not

. available thus the effects of GASB 68 including the related pension liability were not reported on the balance
_ sheet or statements of Tevenies, expenses and changes in net position for that year.

For the year ended September 30, 2015, Rankin County, recogmz:ed pension expense of $5,158,523. At
September 30, 2015, Rankin County reported deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the followmg SOUrCes:

* Defemed . Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources .
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 666,095 $ - .-
Net difference between projected and actual
eamings on pensijon plan investments 2,532,488 -
Changes of Assumptions 3,728.638 -
- Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 743,811 -
3 7671032 - § -
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(16) . Pension Plan Obligations — continued

At September 30, 2015, Rankin County reported $743,811 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from employer centributions subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the year ending September 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Ye in er30 Amount
;2016 - . $ 2248833
2017 2243333
2018 1,796,434
2019 : ' 633,121
$ 6927.221
Actuaria lAmpﬁons'
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015, actuarial valuation was determined using the folowing actuarial
assumptions and other inputs:
Inflation | | ' 3.00%
Salary increases : 3.75%-19.00%, average, including mﬂa;non
Investrent rate of return 7.75%, net of position of pension plan investment expense,
including inflation

Mortahty rates were based on the'RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Table Pro;ected with Scale BB o 2016
set forward one year for males.

The actuarial assnmptlons used in the June 30, 2015, valuauon were based on the results of an actuarial expenence
study for the period July 1, 2010 through June 30 2014." The experience report is dated May 4, 2015.

The long-term expected rate of return an pensmn plan investments was determmed_,usmg a log-normal distribution

analysis in which best-¢stimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected nominal returns, net of

pension plan investment expense and the assumed rate of inflation) are developed for each major asset class.. These

. ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
- . return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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Pension Plan Obligations — continued
A ial Assum) 'ti — continped

The target asset allocauon and best estimates of arlthmenc real rates of retumn for each major asset class as of June
30, 2015, are summanzed in the following table:

Target Long-term

Allocation Expected Real
Asset Class ____Percentage _Rate of Retumh
U. S. Broad 3400 % 520 %
International equity 19.00 5.00 -
Emerging mackets equity 8.00 545
Fixed income 20.00 - .
Real assets 10,00 4.00
Private equity 8.00 - 615
Cash 1.00 (.50)

100.00 %

Discount Rate. The discount rate-used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate {9.00%) and that participating employer contributions will be made at the current employer
contribution rate (15.75%). Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make ali pro_lccted future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term

expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benef‘n payments to
determine the total penslon liability. ,

] Rankin Coumy 5 propomonate share of the net pens:on habnhty has beencalculaxed usmg a dlscount rate of
7. 75% The following presents the Rankin County’s proportionate share of the net pens10n lisbility calculated
using a discount rate 1% higher and 1% lower than the current rate.

1% Current

‘Decrease ‘Discount 1% Increase
. ,  (6.75%) Rate (7.75%) 8.75% -
Proportionate share of the net pension . - .
liability ’ : $ 57050272 $ 43282478 § 31,857,734
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Pension Plan Obligations — continued '

. Pension Plan Fiduciary Nef Pc_)thJ@ Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net posmon is

available in the separately issued comprehensive annual ﬁnanclal report which can be obtamed at
WWW. pers ms.gov.

Payable to the Bensugn Pm, At September 30 2015, Rankm County has no amounts payable for outstnndmg
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended September 30, 2015.

Subsequent Events

Events that occur after the Statement of Net Posmon date but before the financial statements are avatlahle to be
issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that prowde gvidence

* about conditions that existed af the Statement of Net Position date are recognized in the accompanying financial

stafements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the Statement of -
Activities date require disclosure in the accompanying notes. Management of Rankin County evaluated the -
activity of the County thiough Jutie 8, 2016, and determined that the following subsequent events have occurred
that require disclosure in the notes to the financial statements;

November 2,2015- approved draw funds on lease with Trustmark on new communication system.

January 15 2016 - approved Sheriff's Department to purchase 3 used Chevrolet Tahoes from Mtssourl Htghway '

Patrol with budget funds from Sheriff’s Department.
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RANKIN COUNTY

Budgetary Comparison Schedule-

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) General Fund

For Year Ended September 3|0, 20158

Variance with

REVENUES

Property taxes

Licenses, commissions and other revenue

Fines and forfeitures

Intergovemmental revenues

Charges for services

.Interest income

Miscellaneous revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government
Public safety
Health and welfare
‘Culture and recreation
Conservation of natural resources
Economic development and assistance

' Capital projects

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
~over (under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Proceeds fromsale of capital assets

Proceeds fromcompensation of assets

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balance

: Fund'.Ba!an'ces - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

Actual’ Fina] Budget

Original Final .  (Budgetary Positive
Budget ___ Budget Basis) (Negative)
$ 23253802 $ 24120016 $ 24,120,016 -
2,103,290 2,471,043 2,471,043 .
958,000 1,314,694 1,314,694 -
4,372,000 4,511,803 4,511,803 -
1,785,000 1,542342 1,542,342 -
210,000 274,686 274,686 -
1,590,140 1,404,318 1,404,318 -
34,272,232 35,638,902 35,638,902 -
13975272 13,657,519 13,657,519 -
17784775 16,713,145 16,713,145 -
1,265,383 1,244,833 1,244,833 -
" 45,000 38,393 38,393 -
451,778 - 288,951 288,951 -
50,326 55,141 55,141 - -
587,100 88,382 88,382 -
. 4,185471 4,185,471 .
- - A84 484 .
34,159,634 36,272,319 36,272,319 -
112,598 (633,417) 633417 -

- 4,175,000 4,175,000

- " 20,100 20,100 .
. 6,420 6,420 -
1,395,000 . 2,196,687 2,196,687 .
(1,874,398) (3,870,573) (3,870573) -
(479,398) 2,527,634 2,527,634 -
(366,800) 1,894,217 1,804,217 -
14,796,114 17,566,759 12,834,055 - (4,732,704)

$ 14429314 $ 19460976 $ 14728272 § (4,732,704)

The a‘égompanying notes to the required supplemental information are an integral part of this schedule. .
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R&NKIH COUNTY
‘ Budget:il‘j Comparison Schedule-
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis)
County Uit Road Maintenance Fund -
For the Year Ended Septelnber 30, 2015

Variance with

. Actual Final Budget
Original Final (Budgetary -+ . Positive
. Budget - Budget . _ Bagsis) (Negative)
Property Taxes $ 7303777 $ 1611425 0§ 7611425 § -
Licenses, Commissions, and other Revenue C 2,000 ‘ 2,098 2,098 -
Road and Bridge Privilege Taxes - 1,990,000 2,019472 - 2,019472 -
Intergovemmental Revenues - 1,048,200 4,215,445 4,215,445 -
" Interest Income , 226,000 194,731 194,731 . .
Miscellaneous Revenues 51,000 . 11,238 ' 11,238 . -
Total Revenues 10,620,977 14,054,409 14054400 = -
EXPENDITURES
Curmrent: :
" . Public Works - 12,650,750  11,134271 11,134,271 - .
Debt Service: - : . . . . .
Principal 2,018,120 1,292,233 0 1,292233 -
Interest , : - 34,734 . 34,734 L
Total Expenditures ; : 14,668,870 12,461,238 12,461,238 * - -
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) ' . .
" Expenditures ' (4,047,893) 1,593,171 1,593,171 . . -
' OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) o :
Transfers i in 150,000 - 547 547 : -
Proceeds from sale of assets C - 483,500 483,500 -
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses " 150,000 484,047 484,047 -
Net Change in Fund Balance (3,897,893) - 2,077,218 2077218 .
Fund Balances - Beginning - : 10,000,000 16,013,556 16,174,889.° . 161,333
. Fund Balances - Ending \ $ 6102107 § 18,090,774 $ 18,252,107 $ 161,333

The accompénying notes to the required supplemental information are an integral part of this schedule.
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RANKIN COUNTY

Budgetary Comparison Schedute-
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis)
County Unit Bridge and Culvert Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

. REVENUES

Property Taxes

Licénses, Commissions, and Other Revenue
Intergovernmental Revenues

Interest Income

Misccllimequs income

~ Total Revenues -
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Works
Debt Seri(icgz
Principal
" Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

Variance with
Actual .Final Budget
Original Final (Budgetary Positive
Budget - Budget Basis) . {Negative)
3387504 § 3485888 § 3485888 § -
700 679 ' 679 . -
© 290,000 247358 247,358 -
- 135 135 -
3,678,204 3,734,060 3,734,060 -
7,488,645 5257493 5,257,493 -
264,395 2774 277,494 -
. 7,740 7,740 -
7,753,040 5,542,727 5542,727 . -
11,969,107 13,887377 14,705,845 818,468
7894271  § 12078710  $ 12,897,178 § . 818,468

The accompanying notes to the Required Supplementary Information are an integral part of this schedule.
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RANKIN COUNTY :
Naotes to the Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

" a. Budgetary Information,

Statutory requirements dictatc how and when the County’s budget is to be prepared. Generally, in the month
of August, prior to the ensuing fiscal year beginning each October 1, the Board of Supervisors of the County,

+ using historical and anticipated fiscal data and proposed budgets submitted by the Sheriff and the Tax

Assessor-Collector for his or her respective department, prepares an original budget for each of the
Governmental Funds for said fiscal year. The completed budget for the fiscal year includes for each fund -
every source of revenue, each general item of expenditure, and the unencumbered cash and investment
balarices. When during thé fiscal year it appears to the Board of Supervisors that bucdgetary esnmaxes will not
be met, it may make revisions to the budget.

The County’s budget is prepared prmmpally on the cash basis of accountmg All appropnanons lapse at year
end, and there are no encumbrances to budget because state law does not requlrc that funds be available when
goods or services are ordered, only when payment is made

. Basis of Presentatlon.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule- Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) presents the original legally
adopted budget, the final legally adopted budget, actual amounts on a budgetary (Non-GAAP Basis) and
variances between the final budget and the actual amounts. The schedule is presented for the General Fund.

'The Budgetary Companson Schedule — Budgct and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) is a part of required

supplementary information.

Budget/GAAP Recanciliation.
The major dlﬁ'erences between the budgetary basm and the GAAP basis are:

1. Revenues are recorded when recewed in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptlble
to accrual (GAAP).

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budgetary) as Opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP). ,

The following schedule reconciles the budgetary basis schedules to the GAAP bams financial smtements for.
the General Fund and each major Special Revenue Fund:

Governmental Fund Type
County County
Unit Road Lnit Bridge
General ~ Maintenance  and Culvert

- Fund Fund . Fund
Budget (Cash Basis) , $ 18M217 § 2077218 §  (1,808,667) .
Increase (Decrease): ’ o )
"Net Adjustnpnts for Revenne Accruals 131,001 " (1,407,161) - 547,613
Net Adjustments for Expenditure Aceruals (8.374) 815,74 (492,319)

GA AP Basis $ 2016344 $ 1485851 §  (1,753,373)
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RANKIN COUNTY |
. Schedule of the Employer’s Propoertionate Share
- of the Net Pension Ligbility
For the Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 . ' 2014 -
Ehp]ayefs proportion of the net pension libility (asset) ’ - 28% 28%
_ Embyefs proportionate share of the net péns ion ) :
fiability (asset) : 3 43282478 8 33986873
- Employer's covered-employee payroll 17,701,963 17,283,758
Employer's proportionate share of the net pension lintlvility . _
(asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee payrolt - 244.15% . - 19664%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total :
pension libility ' : 61.70% . 67.21%

Information above is presenited as of the measurement daté of June 30 of the fiscal year presented.

Information is not currently available for prior years; additional years will be displayed as they
become available. '
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_RANKIN COUNTY
Schedaule of the County’s Contributions
For the Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2014

Information above is presented as of the Employer's fiscal year

- Information is not currently available for prior years; additional years will be displayed as they

becorre available. '

2015
Contractually required contribution - $ | 2,788056. § | ' | 2,722,190
Contributions in relation to the contractually required : 2,788,056 2,722,190
. Contribution Ideﬁciency (emessJ) : - $ S L 3 - -
Employer's govcmd-éﬁ'plqyeé payroﬁ ' 17,’?0i,963 17,283,758
Contributiops as a percentage of covered-employee payroll | 15.75% | 15.75%
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: RANKIN COUNTY
Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September-30, 2015

Schedule|

Federal
CFDA  Pass-through Entity Federal

Number _Identifying Number  Expenditures

Passed-through the Miss&sippi Department of Public Safety:

Juvenile Accountability Block Grant | ' 16523  13DC 1611 $ 46558
Juvenile Accountability Block Grant 16523  14DC1611 112,943
- Total US. Department of Justice : : ' 159,501 -

Passed-thmugh the Mlss :ssnppi Departmunt of Transponation:

Highway Planning and Construction * 20205  HPP-7331-00(005) |
: | | : 104626801 2,387,708
 Passed-through the Mississippi Office of Highway Safety o
Alcohol Open Container Requirement 20607  15-ST-161-1 55,794
Total U.S. Departiment of Transportation , 2,443,502
Executive Office of the Presid .
?assed-through Mississippi Emergency Management Agency:
High Inensity Drug Trafficking Areas Programt , : 95001  GI3GCO003A . 42,037
Total Executive Office of the President - 42,037

Passed-through MlssBsrppl Emergency Management Agency: : _-
Hazard Mitigation Grant 97039  DR-1604-MS-0459 : 55,170

Emergency Management Performance Grant 97042 13EMPG /AL
Tatal Department of Homeland Security ' . o 147,362
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards - $ 2792402

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared on the modified accrual basis

of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB -
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Government and Non-Profit Organizations . Therefore, some amounts
presented in this scheduk may differ fromamounts presented in, orused in the preparation ofthe basic
financial statements.

* Denotes major Federal award program,
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~ Schedule of Surety Bonds for County Officials
'For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

RANKIN COUNTY

Name . , Position Bond Amount
. Jared Momison Supervisor - $ 100,000
" Rodney Keith Supervisor 100,000
Greg Wilcox Supervisor 100,000
Walter Johinson Supervisor 100,000
Jay Bishop Supervisor 100,000
Rebecca Boyd Circuit Clerk 100,000 -
. Judy Fortenberry TaxCollector 100,000
' John Sullivan Tax Assessor 50,000
Lary Swales Chancery Clerk 100,000
Laura Oster Comptrofter/County Administrator . 100,000
Bryan Bailey . Sheriff - 100,000
- Barry Bean Constable 50,000
Brad Patridge Constable . 50,000
Emest Brown Constable 50,060
Gary Windham Constable 50,000
Richard Redfern Judge 50,000
Ken Fairly Judge 50,000
John Shirley Judge 50,000
Joshus McCrory Judge 50,000
Jessica Floyd Massey Justice Court Clerk 50,000
Irvin L. Westbrooks Road Manager 50,000
Bridgett Herring Purchase Clerk 75,000
Katic Burkett = Asst. Purchase Clerk - 50,000
Ann Bownmn ‘Receiving Clerk 75,000
Mitsi Tigrett Deputy Clerk’ 50,000
Jessica Flood - Deputy Clerk 100,000
Brittany Miller Deputy Clerk 50,000
Philoniece Myers Deputy Clerk 50,000
Amie Cain Deputy Clerk 100,000,
Cindy Edwards . Deputy Clerk 50,000
Shanna McLaurin Deputy Clerk © 50,000
Lynn Means Deputy Clerk 50,000
David L. Momow Deputy Clerk 100,000
’ Constance Johason Deputy Clerk 50,000
Shannon vy Deputy Clerk 50,000
Whittney Myers Deputy Clerk 50,000
Leslie Denham Clerk 50,000
Rhonda Luckett Clerk - 50,000
Wilma Lucroy Clerk 50,000
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HERZOG CPA COMPANY, PLLC

Angela T. Herzog, CPA

12 98 Place Boulevard » P.O. Box 17986 ¢ Hattiesburg, Mississippi 39404
Phone 601-271-8850 » Fax 601-271-8921 -

1020 Northpark Drive s Ridgeland, Mississippi 39157

- INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

-

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN .
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

June 8, 2016

Members of the Board of Supervisors

‘Rankin County, Mississippi

We have audited, in accordance with- audltlng standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptrolter General of the United
States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Rankin County, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to-the financial
statemerits, which collectively comprise the County s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June
8, 2016. Our report inciudes an adverse opinion on the aggregate dlscretely presented component units due to the omission of
the discretely presented units which are required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Americato
be reported with the financial data of the County’s primary government unless the County also issues financial statements for
the financial réporting entity that.include the financial data for its component units. The report is qualified on the governmental
activities because the County did not record a liability or current year expense for other postemploymem benefits as required
by accounting pnnclplcs generally accepted in the United States of America.”

ver Financial Ftin '
In planning at;d performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Rankin County, Mississippi’s internal control
over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate i the circumstances for the purpose-of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
County’s internat control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveniess of the County’s internal controf.

Our coﬁsidemtim- of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph -

- and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be materiai weaknesses

or significant deficiencies, and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies mayexrst that were not identified.
However, as described in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control
that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deﬁclency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected.and corrected on a timely
basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as 2015-001,
20135-002, 2015-003, 2015-004, and 2015-005 to be material weaknesses.

" Member of the American Institute-of Certified Public Accountants and the Mississippi Sodiety of Certified Public Accountants
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Rankin County, Mississippi’s financial statements are free from’

- material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant

agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financia} statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an-cobjective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Rankin County’s responses to the findings ideritified in our andit are described in the accompanymg Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs. We did not audit Rankin County’s Tesponses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them:

This repon is mtended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Supervmors, federal awarding agencies,

and pass through entities and is not interrded to be and should riot be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
However, this report is a matter of public récord and its distribution is not limited.

LlMH.Cf’A Ct}“fh.#l PuC ) N o

Herzog CPA Company, PLLC

Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Mississippi Society of Certified Public Accountants
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'HERZOG CPA COMPANY PLLC

Angela T. Herzog, CPA

1298 Place Boulevard » P.O. Box 17986 « Hatl:lesburg, MISSISSIPPI 39404
Phone 601-271-8860 » Fax 601-271-8921

1020 Northpark Drive « Ridgeland, Mississippi 39157

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
'REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Tune 8, 2016

. Members of the Board of Supervisors

Rankin County, Mississippi
Report on Compliance h Maj Pro

We have audited Rankm Comty, M:ss:smppn s compliance with the types of comphance requirements described in the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplemént that could have a direct and material effect

' on its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2015. Rankin County, Mississippi's major federal programs

are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

ment’s i'i-

Managemem is responsible for compliance with the requuements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants appficable to its
federal programs.

Augditors’ Responsibil

“Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Rankin County, Mississippi’s rﬁajor federal programs

based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Gavernment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-
133 requir¢ that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assirance about whether noncompliance with the types of
complisnce requu‘ements referred to above that could have 2 direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Rankin County, Mississippi's compliance with those requirements
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We belicve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal
determination on Rankin County, Mississippi's compliance.

QQMMLMM:@
Inour oplmon; Rankin County, Mississippi, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements:

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federat programs for the year ended September 30,
2015. : .

Member.of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Mississippi Society of Certified Public Accountants
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Report on Intemal Control Ovei Compliance

The management of Rankin County, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered Rankin County, Mlsslsslppls internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federat program to ‘determine our auditing procedures that are appropriate. in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressmg our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report
on internat control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for purpose of expressing an opinion on

. the effectiveness of internal contro over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Couanty's internal controi over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over complmnce exists when the desrgn or operation of a control over compliance does not

-allow managetaent or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, 6 prevent, or detect and correct,

nencompliance with a type of comphance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal

" control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is

reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirernent of a federal- progmm will not be
prevented, ordetected and cotrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemal control over compllance isa
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over cmnpl:mce yet 1mportmt enough to merit
attennon by those charged w:th govemance

Our consideration of the internal control over comphance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this

" section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control aver compliance that might be material weaknesses

or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control pver compliance that we cunsnder o be
matena.l weaknesses. However material weaknesses may ex:st that have riot been identified.

_ The purpose of this report on internal control-over compliance is solely to.describe the scope of our testing of mtemal control

-over compliance and the resuits of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Citcular A-133. Accordingly this report is
not suitable for any other purpose However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not ilmlted

CHA Cﬂ-]oa% PuC

" Herzog CPA Company, PLLC

Member of theAmerican Institute of Certified Public Accountarits and the Mississippi Soclety of Certified Public Accountants
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HERZOG CPA COMPANY, PLLC
Angela T. Herzog, CPA

‘12 98 Place Boulevard » P.O. Box 17986 ¢ Hattiesburg, M:ss:ssxppl 39404
Phone 601-271-8860 » Fax 601-271-8921

1020 Northpark Drive ¢ Ridgeland, Mississippi 39157

- INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CENTRAL PURCHASING SYSTEM,
INVENTORY CONTROL SYSTEM; AND PURCHASE CLERK SCHEDULES
(REQUIRED BY SECTION 31-7-115, MISS. CODE ANN. (1972)) -
June 8, 2016

Members of the Board of Supervisors

. Rariin County, Mississippi

We have examined Rankin County, MISSISSlppl'S (the County) compliance with estabhshmg and mamtalmng acentral
purchasing system and inventory contro! system in accordance with Sections 31-7-101 through 31-7-127, Miss. Code Ann,
(1972) and compliance with the purchasing requirements in accordance with the bid requirements of Section 31-7-13, Miss.
Code Ann. (1972) during the year ended September 30, 2015. The Board of Supervisors of Rankin County, Mississippi is
responsible for the County's compliance with those requlrements Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County's
compliance based oo our examination:

"Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Instltute of Certified

Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those
requirements and performing other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe our examination
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the County's
compliance with specified requirements. The Board of Supervisors of Rankin County, Mississippi, has established centralized
pul'cbasmg for all funds of the County and has established an inventory control system. The objective of the central purchasing
systzm is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that purchases are executed in accordance with state law.

Because of inherént limitations in any central purchasmg system and inventory control system, errors or irregularities may
oceur and not be detected. Also, projection of any current evaluation of the system to future periods is subject to the risk that
procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compllance with the procedures may

. deteriorate.

In our opinion, Rankin County, Mississippi, complied, in all material respects, w1th state laws governing central purchasmg,
inventory and bid requirements for the year ended September 30, 2015.

The accompanying schedules of (1) Purchases Not Made from the Lowest Bidder, (2) Emergency Purchases and (3) Purchases
Made Noncompetitively from a Sole Source are presented in accordance with Section 31-7-115, Miss. Code Ann. (1972). The
information contained on these schedules has been subjected to procedures performed in ¢onnection with our aforementioned
examination of the purchasing system and, in our opinion, is fairly presented when cbnmdered in relation to that examination.

Thssreport is mtended for use in evahiatmg the central purchasing system and inventory control system of Rankin County,
Mississippi, and is not intended to be and should not be relied upon for any other purpose. Huwever this report is a matter of
public re¢ord and ns distribution is not lmnted

CAA Copony UL

_ Hen A Company, PLLC

. Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Mississippi Society of Certified Public Accountants



RANKIN COUNTY
Schedule of Purchases Not Made From the Lowest Bidder
" For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Schedule |
Reason for Accepting
. . , : ‘ Othéer than the Lowest
Date Ttem Purchased Bid Accepted Vendor Lowest Bid Bid
Y15 TandemDump Trucks $ 739488  Tri-State TruckCenter $ 675282  Did not meet minimmm
e ' ' specifications '

67



'RANKIN COUNTY
Sehedute of Emergency Purchases
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Our test results did not identify any emergency purchases,

Schedule 2
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RANKIN COUNTY

Schedule of Purchazes Made Noncompetitivély From a Sole Soarce

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

_Date Item Purchased Amount Paid Vendor
5/18/2015 Tactical Robots $ 62529  Robotex Inc.
5/18/2015 Tactical Robots 25,590 - Robotex, Inc.
8/3/2015 ‘Life Pak Device 18_,618 Physio Control
8/3/2015 Life Pak Device 79,520

Physio Control

hle
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HERZOG CPA COMPANY, PLLC
- Angela T. Herzog, CPA

12 98 Place Boulevard » P.O. Box 17986 ¢ Hatl:lesburg, MISB!SSIPPI 39404
Phone 601-271-8860 ¢ Fax 601-271-8921
1020 Northpark Drive o Ridgeland, Mrsslsalppl 39157

LIMITED INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE REVIEW MANAGEMENT REPORT

June 8 2016

Members of the Board of Supervisors
Rankin County, Mississippi

In plannihg and performing our audit of the financial statements of Rankin County, Mississippi for the year ended Sep'a:mbér
30, 2015, we considered Rankin County, Mississippi’s internal contro! to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal control.

. In addition, for areas not considered matenal to Rankin County, Mississippi’s financial reporting, we have performed some

additional limited internal control and state legal compliance review procedures as identified in the state legal compliance audit
program issued by the Office of the State Auditor. Our procedures were substantially less in scope thas an audit, the objective

of which is the expression of an apinien on the County’s compliance with these requirements. Accordingly, we.do not express
such an opinion. This report does not affect our report dated June 8, 2016, on the ﬁnancml statement of Rankin County,

. Mississippi.

Although' no findings came to. our attention as a result of these review procedures and compliance tests, these prooedures and
tests canniot and do not provide absolute assurance that all state legal requirements have been complied with: 'Also, our
consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters within the internat control that might be
weaknesses. In accordance with Section 7-7-211, Miss. Code Ann. (1972), the Office of the State Auditor, when deemed
necessary, may conduct additional procedures and tests of transactions for this or ather fiscal years to ensure comphance with
legal requwements .

- - This report is miended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Supervisors, and others within the

entity and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties. However, this report is a matter of
public record and its distribution is not limited.

Um@i Cm Ca-]w‘.rf‘-(,(’,

Company, PLLC

.Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Mississippl Society of Certified Public Accountants
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RANKIN COUNTY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

-ie.EEiQ.l! 1: Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financie! Statements:
1. Type of auditors’ report issued on the primary government financial statements:
Governmental Activities , Qualified
Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units Adverse
General Fund - Unmodified
County Unit Road Maintenance Fund Unmodified
County Unit Bridge and Culvert Fund _ Unmodified
Rankin County Bond & Interest Fund Unmodified
Aggregate remaining fund information - T Unmodified
2. Internal control over financial reporting:
. a. Material weakness identified? Yes
Ib.‘A significant deficiency identified that is not considered to be a materiai .
weakness? ' None reported
3. ' . Noncompliance material to the primary govemnment financial statements? None reported
Federal Awards;
‘ 4.- Internal control over majorlprdgrams:
2. Material weakness identified? | No
b. Significant deficiency identified that is not considered to be a material
weakness? Noue reported
5. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified.
6. Any audit finding reported as required by Section _.510(a) Of Circular A-133? No
7. " Federsl programs identified as major programs:
' Highway Planning and Construction : CFDA# 20.205
8. The dollar ﬁrcshold used to distinguish between type A and type Blpr?ograms: $300,000
9. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? ' No
10.  Prior fiscal year audit findings and questioned cost relative to federal awards -

which would require the auditee to prepare a summary schedule of prier

 audit findings as discussed in Section , .315(b) of OMB Circular A-133?  No
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~ RANKIN COUNTY '
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Section 2: Finangial Statement Em ings
Board of Supervisors.

2015-001. Finding - Board of Supervisors

Significant Deficiency - ial Wi

As reported in the prior year’s audit report, generally accepted accounting principles require the financial
data for the County's component units to be reported with the financial data of the County's primary
government, unless the County also issues financial statements for the financial reporting entity that include
the financial data for its component units. The financial statements do not include the financial data for all of .
the County's legally separate component units. Only three of the component units could provide audited
financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2013, The other component units of the County do
not have audits of their financial statements at year end. The failure to properly follow generally accepted

. accounting principles resulted in an adverse opinion on the discretely presented component units with
financial data not included in this report.

Recommendation;

The Baard of Supervisors should require that all of its component units provide the financial data for its
discretely presented component units for the inclusion in the County's financia) statements.

of § isor’s Res|
. It would be cost prbhibitive to require these small component units to have an audited financial statement

2015-002. Finding - Board of Supervisors

- Bignificant Defici - Material Weakness.
As reported in the prior years’ aundit report, the investments account was not propetly recorded at September
30, 2015.
Recommendation:

, The Board of Supervisors should establish adequate controls and procedures to ensure that the investment
transactions are properly recorde in accordance with generally accepted accounting prmclples The Board
should have the investment firm prepare a monthly reconciliation of all transactions within the investment
‘accounts. The County should then record all transactions included on the monthly reconciliation.

of Su iSO

The County has contdcted the investment firm and is in the process of the nnplementatlon of the above
recommendation.
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RANKIN COUNTY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

2015-003. Finding - Board of Supervisors
' Significant Deficiency - Material Weakness.

The new limited «obligation bond was recorded in an incorrect fund at September 30, 2015 The infrastructure
paid for with the bond proceeds ‘was not recorded at September 30, 2015.

Recommendati

The Board of -Sﬁpervisors should establish adequate controls and procedures to ensure that the bond and
~ capital asset transactions are properly recorded in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. -

The County will correctly record assets and bond proceeds in the future period.

2015-004. Finding — Justice Court
cy -~ ial €8S,

The depomts were not being made timely for civil and criminal recelpts dunng the year ended September 30,
2015,

Recol ion;
. The Justice Court Clerk should deposit funds daily.
Deposlts are now beiﬁg' made timely.

2015-005. Einding - Board of Supervisors
Signiﬁcml Deﬁciencx' - Material Weakness. .
The Internal Service Fund had a deficit fund balance at September 30, 2015.
R ndation; |
A transfer to the internal service fund should be made to cover the deficit fund balance at year end.
of Supervi |

The County will authorize and transfer funds at year end to cover any deficit fund balanogé.

ion 3: Fe .i'wérdFi ings and igned C
The results of our tests did not disclose any findings and questioned costs related to federal awards.
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